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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN Saqib Zia
MEMBERS Khalid Ahmed Farid
 Syed Danish Hussain Shah
 Sunnia Anwer
 Sumika Farooqui
 Syed Jawaid Iqbal
 Sheikh Adil Hussain

AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN Syed Jawaid Iqbal
MEMBERS  Sunnia Anwer
 Saqib Zia

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT &
SECRETARY TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  Saad Un Nabi Khan*

HUMAN RESOURCE &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN  Sheikh Adil Hussain
MEMBERS  Sumika Farooqui
 Khalid Ahmed Farid

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER Khalid Ahmed Farid

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Syed Irshad Hassan* 

COMPANY SECRETARY Moosa Haroon

AUDITORS  Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS  Surridge & Beecheno

BANKERS  Citibank, N.A.
 Habib Bank Limited
 Standard Chartered Bank

SHARE REGISTRAR FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Ltd.
 Management Consultants,
 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block-6,
 P.E.C.H.S. Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
 Tel: + (92 21) 34380101-2

REGISTERED OFFICE  11th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City,
 HC-3, Block-4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue,   
 Clifton, Karachi - 75600, Pakistan.
 Tel: + (92 21) 3520 5088
 Fax: + (92 21) 3529 6150
 Web: www.gillettepakistan.com

*Mr. Irshad was appointed as CFO and Mr. Saad was appointed as Head of Internal Audit with effect from August 1, 2019.



3

ACCOUNTS
JUNE

ANNUAL

2019

VISION STATEMENT
To build Total Brand Value by innovating to deliver 
consumer value and customer leadership faster, 
better and more completely than our competition.

Our vision is driven by two fundamental principles 
that provide the foundation for our activities:

Organizational Excellence
Core Values
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT 

I am pleased to welcome you at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of Gillette Pakistan Limited (‘the Company’) and present on 
behalf of the Board of Directors (‘the Board’), the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2019 along with 
my review on the performance of your Company.

Economic Overview:

Fiscal year 2018-19 has been a challenging year for Pakistan’s economy where the Rupee slipped by 23% vs year ago. This 
adjustment was reflective of the country’s external balance of payments position, which was under severe pressure due to large 
twin deficits. Economic growth slowed down to 3.3% in fiscal year 2018-19 vs year ago. Outlook for fiscal year 2019-20 seems 
challenging as well with further Rupee devaluation, high inflation & slow economic growth.

Business Overview:

Fiscal year 2018-19 was a strong year on Gillette Pakistan with Sales Revenue closing at +7% vs year ago. This was despite 
headwinds on the macro-economic front driven by 23% PKR devaluation coupled with increased duties and high inflation. 

To cover for this, the Company had to 1) price up key lineups 2) reduce marketing spend pool and 3) rationalize on trade 
discounts. This helped turn around profitability by +7% vs. last year (closing at 13% vs. 6% last year).

During the year, the Company closely focused on distribution and coverage expansion. Major focus areas for this year were (i) 
driving disposables & systems (ii) and continued focus on channel fundamentals. In addition, the Company also continued to offer 
its consumers better value promo packs across portfolio coupled with marketing campaigns and other consumer touch point 
events. 

As a result of the above, the brand was able to maintain gross margin of 33% vs last year and a before tax profit of 13% vs last 
year’s 6%. This is due to the efforts placed by the management in negotiating our supply prices to ensure that our supplier prices 
remain competitive as well as reducing overall marketing spend pool.

Future Outlook:

Moving forward we expect to pick robust growth and penetration ahead of estimated market growth by maintaining the right 
balance in our portfolio and high levels of distribution behind coverage expansion along with consumer centric marketing. The 
management’s key focus is to ensure top line continues to grow as we become more consumer focused and develop stronger 
trade plans. However, the management has its set of challenges ahead of them in the form of further currency devaluation.

Acknowledgement:

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express my appreciation to our Shareholders for their absolute confidence, our 
Supplier for maintaining sustained and quality supplies, our parent and associated companies for their continuous guidance, our 
valued Customers for their un-paralleled reliance in Company’s illustrious product line and the Regulators and other stakeholders 
for their understanding and support. I would accordingly, put on thanks to the Board of Directors for their contribution, the 
management and employees for their persistent and untiring commitment, arduous work and co-operation throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board,

Saqib Zia
Chairman

September 30, 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
On behalf of the Board of Directors (the Board) of Gillette Pakistan Limited (‘the Company’), we are pleased to present the audited 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, along with the auditors’ report thereon. 

Financial Results:
The principal activities of the Company include marketing and selling of blades and razors. Following are the financial results of 
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019:

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT    
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019        
   
  June 30,  June 30, 
 2019 2018
 ----------- Rupees in '000 ----------
    
  Sales - net  1,962,721 1,828,717
  Cost of goods sold   (1,310,766) (1,233,559)
  Gross profit   651,955 595,158 
  GP Ratio  33.2% 32.5%
  Selling, marketing and distribution expenses  (328,538) (336,221)
  Administrative expenses  (45,786) (29,132)
  Other operating expenses  (41,811) (107,217)
  Interest expense (7,376) (8,679)
  Bank charges  (217) (251)
  Other income  30,244 2,910
  Profit before tax  258,471 116,568
  BT Ratio  13.2% 6.4%
  Income tax expense  (94,078) (112,246)
  Profit after tax  164,393 4,322
  AT Ratio 8.4% 0.2%
    
 Earnings / (loss) per share  8.56  0.23

This fiscal year was yet another challenging year for the Company behind increased duties, significant devaluation in local 
currency and high inflation. Despite of these challenges, the Company was able to maintain the gross margin of 33.2% vs. 32.5% 
last year.

Selling and distribution expenses were flat vs. last year. However administrative expenses were increased by Rs. 16 million mainly 
driven by professional charges of tax consultants and legal advisors. These charges were incurred due to tax audits and queries 
raised in the current fiscal. The salaries expenses also increased in the current year behind increase in pension indexation from 
4.8% to 8.8%. 

In the current year, there is a significant change in Exchange Loss of approximate Rs. 27 million, mainly because of revaluation 
adjustment arised in the intercompany payable and Euro has gained grounds during the later parts of fiscal year. Stock written off 
is also significantly lower vs. last year resulted in decrease in operating expenses by Rs. 37 million.

Entire receivable of Rs. 84 million dues from affiliates have been received during the year.
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Dividend:
The Board reviewed the financial results of the Company along with the financial position for the year ended June 30, 2019 and 
has decided to not pay dividend for the year.

Board of Directors:
During the year 2018-19, Mr. Usman Muneer resigned from the board wef July 23, 2018 and the casual vacancy was filled by 
appointing Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain wef Sep 24, 2018.

The names of elected directors are as follows:
1. Mr. Saqib Zia – Chairman
2. Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid – Executive Director
3. Syed Danish Hussain Shah
4. Ms. Sunnia Anwer
5. Ms. Sumika Farooqui
6. Syed Jawaid Iqbal – Independent Director
7. Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain – Independent Director

The composition of the Board is as follows:
- The total number of directors are seven including two female directors.
- The Board comprises of one executive, four non-executive and two independent directors.
- The Board has constituted following committees:

Audit Committee
1. Syed Jawaid Iqbal – Chairman
2. Mr. Saqib Zia 
3. Ms. Sunnia Anwer

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
1. Sheikh Adil Hussain–Chairman
2. Mr. Saqib Zia
3. Ms. Sumika Farooqui

Further, there have been changes in Company Secretary, CFO and Head of Internal Audit of the Company during the year and 
subsequent to the year end.

Code of Conduct:
The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct defining therein acceptable and unacceptable behaviors. The Board has taken steps 
to disseminate this Code throughout the Company along with supporting policies and procedures and this Code has been put on 
the Company’s website available at www.gillettepakistan.com as well.

Code of Corporate Governance:
In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board hereby states as follows:

• The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial 
statements.

• The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of Internal Control and its effectiveness. Such a system is 
designed to minimize the risk of any material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate the same. The Company maintains 
sound internal control system considering the size and nature of the business which gives reasonable assurance against any 
material misstatement or loss. The Internal Control system is regularly reviewed and has been formalized by the Board’s Audit 
Committee and is updated as and when needed.
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• There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• The Company is a subsidiary of The Series Acquisition B.V., Netherlands which is a subsidiary of P&G, USA. The parent 
company holds 91.4% shares of the Company.

• The earnings per share of the Company are disclosed in the financial statements.

• Key operating and financial data for six years in summarized form is given in “Annexure A” to the directors’ report.

• Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.

• The Company has fair policy for Remuneration of  Independent Director. However, no fee is paid to Non-Executive Directors.

• The value of investments of provident and pension funds based on unaudited financial statements as at June 30, 2019 
amounts to Rs.5.27 million and Rs. 103.74 million respectively.

• Details and attendance of directors in meetings of Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee are in “Annexure B” to the directors’ report. 

• The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019 is in “Annexure 
C” to the directors’ report. 

• The Company has planned the Director’s orientation program for remaining Directors in FY2019-20 to ensure compliance with 
the Code of Corporate Governance regulations 2017. 

• No trade in shares of the Company was carried out by any executive of the Company. 

• We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with in all aspect.

• A statement of compliance with the code of corporate governance is presented separately in this annual report.

External auditors
M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment as statutory 
auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2020. The Board also recommend their re-appointment.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its appreciation to the employees of the Company for the commitment, 
hard work and co-operation throughout the year. We would also like to thank our shareholders for their continued support and 
confidence in the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

Khalid Ahmed Farid  Sheikh Adil Hussain
Chief Executive                                                                                                                        Director

Karachi.
September 30, 2019
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA        Annexure “A” 

  
  FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19

INCOME STATEMENT       

Net Sales Rs. in '000 2,060,302  2,079,790  1,902,154  1,834,575  1,828,717  1,962,721 

Cost of Goods Sold Rs. in '000 (1,600,903) (1,551,442) (1,472,853) (1,506,003) (1,233,559) (1,310,766)

Gross Profit Rs. in '000 459,399  528,348  429,301  328,572  595,158  651,955 

GP Ratio % 22.3% 25.4% 22.6% 17.9% 32.5% 33.2%

Other income Rs. in '000 54,141  80,390  28,344  11,562  2,910  30,244 

Selling, marketing and distribution expense Rs. in '000 (288,009) (313,440) (291,378) (302,272) (336,221) (328,538)

Administrative expenses Rs. in '000 (56,525) (58,328) (72,678) (22,234) (29,132) (45,786)

Other operating expenses Rs. in '000 (5,452) (4,470)         (19,068) (99,028) (107,217) (41,811)

Finance Cost Rs. in '000 (45) (95) (27) (17) (8,930) (7,593)

Net Profit before taxes Rs. in '000        163,509         232,405           74,494          (83,417)      116,568         258,471 

PBT Ratio % 7.9% 11.2% 3.9% -4.5% 6.4% 13.2%

Income tax expense Rs. in '000 (105,798) (115,808) (103,817) (110,045) (112,246) (94,078)

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax  Rs. in '000 57,711  116,597  (29,323) (193,462) 4,322  164,393 

PAT Ratio % 2.8% 5.6% -1.5% -10.5% 0.2% 8.4%

EPS (Rs./share) 3.01  6.07  (1.53) (10.08) 0.23  8.56 

Dividends (Rs./share) Nil 5.00  Nil Nil Nil 1.25  

      

  FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19

BALANCE SHEET       

Cash & cash equivalents Rs. in '000        494,595         601,985         200,458         108,400           1,092         562,937 

Trade Receivables Rs. in '000        165,317         241,018         192,618         248,020       168,062         156,356 

Other Receivables Rs. in '000          29,099           21,560           13,119         402,703       203,941           81,130 

Inventory Rs. in '000        596,236         650,445         565,767         582,269       382,081         326,792 

Other Assets Rs. in '000          99,523           83,039           94,090           90,441         91,406           62,780 

Total Assets Rs. in '000   1,384,770    1,598,047    1,066,052    1,431,833     846,582    1,189,995 

        

Trade Payables Rs. in '000 587,578  605,665  221,809  727,722  43,997  532,129 

Other Payables Rs. in '000 73,510  149,923  121,578  172,999  114,736  4,380 

Deferred liabilities Rs. in '000 3,821  4,360  6,080  9,166  10,725  11,572 

Short term running finance                   -                     -                     -                     -    144,774   

Equity Rs. in '000 719,861  838,099  716,585  521,946  532,350  641,914 

Total Liability and Equity Rs. in '000 1,384,770  1,598,047  1,066,052  1,431,833  846,582  1,189,995 

        

Current ratio Times              2.09               2.11               3.10               1.59             2.79               2.22 

Quick ratio (inventory excluded) Times              1.19               1.25               1.46               0.94             1.53               1.61 

Book value per share Rs. Per share            37.49             43.65             37.32             27.18           27.73             33.43 

Receivable days Days            29.29             42.30             36.96             49.35           33.54             29.08 

Inventory days Days          135.94           153.03           140.21           141.12         113.05             91.00 

Payable days Days          133.97           142.49             54.97           176.37           13.02           148.18 
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Directors’ attendance in meetings        Annexure “B” 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, there were five meetings of the Board of Directors held dated September 24, 2018, October 

23, 2018, December 20, 2018, February 26, 2019 and April 23, 2019. There were four meetings of Audit Committee held dated 

September 24, 2018, October 23, 2018, February 26, 2019 and April 23, 2019. These meetings were attended by the directors as 

under:

Board of Directors’ meetings:

Name of Directors Meeting held during the tenure Meetings attended

Mr. Saqib Zia – Chairman                                                                                       5 3

Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid 5 4

Ms. Sumika Farooqui 5 3

Syed Danish Hussain Shah 5 3

Ms. Sunnia Anwer 5 5

Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain 4 4

Syed Jawaid Iqbal 5 5

Audit Committee Meetings:

Name of Directors Meeting held during the tenure Meetings attended

Syed Jawaid Iqbal – Chairman 4 4

Mr. Saqib Zia 4 3

Ms. Sunnia Anwer 4 4

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

In addition to above, two meetings of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held on July 11, 2018 and 

September 24, 2018 and these meeting were attended by directors as under:

Name of Directors Meeting held during the tenure Meetings attended

Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain – Chairman 1 1

Ms. Sumika Farooqui 2 2

Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid 1 1

Mr. Usman Muneer 1 1

Mr. Saqib Zia 1 1
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        Annexure “C” 

Pattern of Shareholding:

No. of Shareholders Shareholding Total Shares Held

 From To 

   

 490 1 100 28,860 

 157  101  500   45,600 

 25  501   1,000                              20,735 

 27  1,001   5,000                              62,299 

 8  5,001  10,000                              64,950 

 3 10,001  15,000                              38,200 

 4 15,001   20,000                              68,670 

 4  20,001   25,000                              87,980 

 3  30,000   35,000                              94,850 

 1  35,001  40,000                              36,500 

 1  40,001  45,000                              41,000 

 1  45,001   50,000                              49,500 

 3   50,001   55,000                           162,100 

 1  200,001   205,000                           200,385 

 1  645,001   650,000                           649,800 

 1  2,805,001   17,600,000                        17,548,571 

   

 730     19,200,000

 

Shareholding by major category:

Shareholders Category No. of shareholders No. of Shares %

   

Individuals 720 773,343 4.03

Investment Companies - - -

Insurance Companies - - -

Joint Stock Companies 7 676,701 3.52

Financial Institutions 1 1,000  0.01

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 200,385 1.04

Associated Companies undertaking & related parties 1 17,548,571 91.40

Foreigners - - 0.00

Total:  730 19,200,000 100%
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Name wise shareholding by category:

Shareholder Category  Number of  Number of 
  Shareholders Share held

  

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (name wise Details)   

 Series Acquisition B.V.  1 17,548,571

  

Mutual Funds (name wise detail)  Nil  Nil

  

Directors, CEO and their spouse(s) and minor children (name wise details)  

Syed Jawaid Iqbal 1 500

Sheikh Adil Hussain 1 500

Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid 1 100

Public Sector Companies and Corporations  Nil  Nil

  

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non- Banking Finance Companies,

Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension funds.  1 200,385

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting rights in the listed company  

(name wise details)  

  

Series Acquisition B.V.  1 17,548,571
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91.4%

2019

2019

5.27103.74
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1,962,721

(1,310,766)

651,955

33.2%

(328,538)

(45,786)

(41,811)

(7,376)

(217)

30,244

258,471

13.2%

(94,078)

164,393

8.4%

8.56

1,828,717

(1,233,559)

595,158

32.5%

(336,221)

(29,132)

(107,217)

(8,679)

(251)

2,910

116,568

6.4%

(112,246)

4,322

0.2%

0.23

2019

2019

2019
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male Directors: Five
b. Female Directors: Two

2. The Composition of board as at June 30, 2019 is as follow:

 Category  Names 
 
 Independent Directors Syed Jawaid Iqbal 
  Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain*

 Executive Director Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid

 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Saqib Zia (Chairman)
  Ms. Sumika Farooqui 
  Mr. Syed Danish Hussain Shah
  Ms. Sunnia Anwer 

 The independent directors on the Board have met the criteria of independence mentioned under section 166(2) of 
Companies Act 2017. 

 *Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain was appointed on the board wef from Sep 24th, 2018 by the Board, in its 138th Board meeting, to 
fill the casual vacancy arising by the resignation of Mr. Usman Muneer from the Board as an Independent Director wef July 
23rd, 2018.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including this 
company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies, where applicable).

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

5. The board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A 
complete record of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board / 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for 
this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording 
and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the 
Act and these Regulations. 
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9. The Board arranged Directors’ Orientation program during the year to comply with the requirement of Regulation 19 of 
Chapter VII. However orientation was not attended by 2 out of 7 directors.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration 
and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board. 

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below

 Category  Names 
 
 Audit Committee Syed Jawaid Iqbal (Chairman)
  Mr. Saqib Zia
  Ms. Sunnia Anwer
 
 HR and Remuneration  Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain* (Chairman)
  Committee Mr. Khalid Ahmed Farid
   Ms. Sumika Farooqui

 *Mr. Sheikh Adil Hussain was appointed on the board wef from Sep 24th, 2018 by the Board, in its 138th Board meeting, to 
fill the casual vacancy arising by the resignation of Mr. Usman Muneer from the Board as an Independent Director wef July 
23rd, 2018.

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance. 

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee are as per following: 

 Committee Frequency of meetings

 a) Audit Committee Quarterly

 b) HR and Remuneration Committee As on need basis (atleast annually)

15. The board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, who are considered 
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality 
control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of 
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they 
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except for the following.

a)  The Company did not comply with the 10(2) of the Regulation of Code of Corporate Governance, 2017 requiring the Board 
of directors to undertake at least annually, an overall review of business risks to ensure that the management maintains a 
sound system of risk identification, risk management and related systemic and internal controls to safeguard assets, 
resources, reputation and interest of the Company and shareholders’. The risk framework was not shared or discussed with 
independent directors of the board.

Khalid Ahmed Farid Saqib Zia
Chief Executive Officer Director
 
September 30, 2019
Karachi
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Gillette Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 
2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review 
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and 
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control 
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of 
Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the 
requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to 
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as 
applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations as reflected in the note reference 
where itis stated in the Statement of Compliance:

 Note Description
              Reference
  
        9 The Board arranged Directors’ Orientation program during the year.
  However,orientation was not attended by two out of seven directors.

                  18(a) The risk framework was not shared or discussed with independent
  directors of the board.
 

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Naresh Kumar

Date: September 26, 2019
Place: Karachi

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
REGULATIONS, 2017 (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi - 75350
Pakistan.

Tel: +92 (0) 21 - 3454 6494-7
Fax: +92 (0) 21 - 3454 1314
Web: www.deloitte.com

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Opinion
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Gillette Pakistan Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, 
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Gillette Pakistan Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi - 75350
Pakistan.

Tel: +92 (0) 21 - 3454 6494-7
Fax: +92 (0) 21 - 3454 1314
Web: www.deloitte.com

S.No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue:

The Company has earned 100% of the revenue from 
local sales of goods during the year. 

The amount of revenue is the most significant class of 
transaction on the statement of profit or loss.  

Revenue from local sales of goods is recognized when or 
as control of goods has been transferred to the customer 
at a point in time, which in the case of the Company 
coincides with physical receipt of shipment of goods at 
the warehouse of the customer.     

- Our audit procedures included considering the 
appropriateness of the Company’s revenue 
recognition accounting policies, including those 
relating to transfer of control of goods to the customer 
at a point in time and assessing compliance with the 
policies in terms of applicable accounting and 
reporting standards.

- We also reviewed the distribution agreement with the 
local sale distributor in order to confirm the 
management position with regards to transfer of 
control of the goods to the customer and recognition 
of related revenue.

1

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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S.No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Since, local sales revenue is a key performance measure 
for the Company, therefore it has been considered key 
audit matter.  

The Company’s accounting policy in respect of revenue is 
disclosed in note 4.1 to the financial statements which 
includes impact of adoption of IFRS 15 also.

Valuation of Stock-in-trade

The total Stock-in-trade as at year end represented 27% 
of the Company’s total assets.

Stock-in-trade is carried in the financial statements at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable 
value includes subsequent selling prices and estimate of 
cost of sale.

Further, the Company has a practice to record the 
stock-in-trade at standard cost, which at the year-end is 
actualized and resulting variances are adjusted using 
inventory turnover ratio. It involves estimates and 
judgments.

Also, the provisions and write-offs for all damaged and 
obsolete stock-in-trade are made based on the specific 
identification of items of stock-in-trade by management.

Considering the above matters, the valuation of 
stock-in-trade has been considered as key audit matter.

The Company’s accounting policy in respect of 
Stock-in-trade is disclosed in note 4.8 to the financial 
statements.

- We tested the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s controls over local 
sale of goods as per the policy.

- For sales made during the year, we verified sales 
transactions on sample basis by obtaining supporting 
documents.

- We assessed sales transactions taking place at either 
side of the year-end with supporting documents to 
assess the appropriateness of revenue recognized 
during the period.

- Performed recalculation of net realizable value (NRV) 
for samples selected in the closing stock-in-trade by 
comparing the cost with the:

• subsequent selling prices which we tested on sample 
basis;

• less cost to sell which was estimated based on the 
current year results.  

-  Obtained details of stock items written off during the 
year and also checked them on test basis with 
supporting documents. 

-  We also observed physical count which was 
performed at year end.

- We evaluated assumptions applied by management to 
identify the amount of variances that needed to be 
adjusted and we also tested the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s controls  that the Company had in place 
over the standard costing and variance calculation 
process.

- For selected samples, we checked variances and 
valuation through comparing standard cost with the 
actual cost as per the purchase invoice and ensured 
that the variances were adjusted as per the estimated 
inventory turnover ratio of the Company.

2

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, 
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to reads the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)  proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b)  the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income or the income and expenditure 
account, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c)  investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s 
business; and

d)  zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naresh Kumar.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Naresh Kumar

Date: October 03, 2019
Place: Karachi

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
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Note

----- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Statement of Financial Position 
As at June 30, 2019

ASSETS   
Non-current asset    
Long-term deposits 5  616   616 

Current assets    

Stock-in-trade 6  326,792   382,081 
Trade debts 7  156,356  168,062 
Trade deposits   9,493   8,597 
Other receivables and prepayments 8  81,130   205,105 
Other financial assets 9  557,312   5,000 
Sales tax refundable   27,192   44,632 
Taxation - net   25,479   31,397 
Bank balances 10  5,625   1,092 
   1,189,379   845,966 
Total assets   1,189,995   846,582 

EQUITY    
Share capital and reserves    

Authorised capital    
   20,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each   200,000   200,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 11  192,000   192,000 
Unappropriated profit   449,914   340,350 

Total equity   641,914   532,350 

LIABILITIES    

Non-current liability    
Deferred liability - gratuity scheme 12  11,572   10,725 

Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables 13  449,186   96,859 
Contract liabilities 14  82,943   60,969 
Unclaimed dividend   4,380   905 
Short term running finance 15  -     144,774 
   536,509   303,507 

Total equity and liabilities   1,189,995   846,582 

Contingencies and commitments 16   

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30
2019

June 30
2018

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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Note

----- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Sales - net 17  1,962,721   1,828,717 

Cost of goods sold  18  (1,310,766)  (1,233,559)

Gross profit    651,955   595,158 

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 19  (328,538)  (336,221)

Administrative expenses 20  (45,786)  (29,132)

Other operating expenses 21  (41,811)  (107,217)

Interest expense 15  (7,376)  (8,679)

Bank charges   (217)  (251)
   (423,728)  (481,500)

Other income 22  30,244   2,910 

Profit before tax   258,471   116,568 

Income tax expense 23  (94,078)  (112,246)

Profit after tax   164,393   4,322 

 ------ Rupees ------

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  24  8.56   0.23  

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30
2019

June 30
2018

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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----- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Profit for the year after tax   164,393   4,322 

Other comprehensive income for the year    

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
   profit and loss account   -     -   

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account    

Remeasurement of post retirement benefit obligations   462   6,082 

Total comprehensive income for the year   164,855   10,404  

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30
2019

June 30
2018

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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Note

----- (Rupees in ‘000) ------

Statement of Cash Flow 
For the year ended June 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Cash flows from operations 26  764,394   (127,445)
Income taxes paid   (88,160)  (104,060)
Finance cost paid   (7,376)  (8,679)
Defined benefits paid - net 12  25,693   4,360 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities   694,551   (235,824)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Interest income received    27,593   1,600 
Net cash generated from investing activities   27,593   1,600 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Dividend paid   (20,525)  (12,858)

Net cash used in financing activities   (20,525)  (12,858)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   701,619   (247,082)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    (143,682)  103,400 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25  557,937   (143,682)

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30
2019

June 30
2018

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Balance as at July 1, 2017  192,000   329,946    521,946 

- Profit for the year  -     4,322   4,322 

- Other comprehensive income   -     6,082   6,082 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     10,404   10,404 

Balance as at June 30, 2018   192,000   340,350   532,350 

Impact of change in accounting policy (Note 4.1)  -     (31,291)  (31,291)

Balance as at June 30, 2018  as restated  192,000   309,059   501,059 

- Profit for the year  -     164,393   164,393 

- Other comprehensive income  -     462   462 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     164,855   164,855 

Transactions with owners recorded directly
 in equity - distributions    

Interim dividend @ Rs. 1.25 per share for the year  -     (24,000)  (24,000)

Balance as at June 30, 2019  192,000   449,914   641,914 

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Unappro-
priated 
profit

 Issued, sub-
scribed and 

paid-up capital 
 Total

--------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------------------

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS        
             

1.1 Gillette Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on December 9, 1986 as a public limited 
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is a 
subsidiary of The Series Acquisition B.V. Netherlands (which is a wholly owned subsidiary of The P&G 
Company, USA). The registered office of the Company is situated at 11th Floor, Harbour Front, Dolmen 
City, HC-3, Block-4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi-75600 and the Company is  listed on 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal activities of the Company include marketing and selling of 
blades and razors.          

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION         
 

2.1 Statement of compliance          

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of:          

 
 -  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and    
  

 -  provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.    
 

 Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS standards, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.  

2.2 Accounting convention          

 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the 
recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value as referred to in note 12 to these financial 
statements.          

2.3 Functional and presentation currency        

 The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.          

2.4 Significant judgments and key sources of estimation in applying the accounting policies  
 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affects the application of 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions 
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including reasonable expectations of future events. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively commencing from the period of revision.      
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Judgments and estimates made by management that may have significant risk of material adjustments 
to the financial statements in the subsequent years are as follows:     

 i) Determination of net realizable value, provision, write off and valuation for stock-in-trade (note 4.11);
 ii)  Assumptions and estimates used in accounting for defined benefits plan (note 4.13 and note 12); 
 iii)  Provision for taxation (note 4.12 and note 23); and     
 iv)   Contingencies and commitments (note 16).       

 
3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO THE 

PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS      

3.1 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the 
year ended June 30, 2019          

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 
2019. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s 
operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other 
than certain additional disclosures except for the impact of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (refer note 4.1 and 4.2). 

             Effective from
                      accounting period
                   beginning on or after:
 
 - Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ - Clarification January 01, 2018
   on the classification and measurement of share-based
   payment transactions.  
  
 - IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’: Amendments regarding the January 01, 2018
   interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9. 
  
 - Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’: Clarification January 01, 2018
   on transfers of property to or from investment property.   
 
 - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance January 01, 2018 
   Consideration’: Provides guidance on transactions where
   consideration against non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred
   income is denominated in foreign currency. 
 
 Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.    

3.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective 
 

 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, 
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and 
the amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have 
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

     Effective from accounting
     period beginning on or after: 

 
 - Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Amendments January 01, 2020
     regarding the definition of business. 
  
 - Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Amendments January 01, 2019
     regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and
     modifications of financial liabilities. 
  
 - Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ Effective from accounting
   and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ period beginning on or
   - Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its after a date to be determined.
   associate or joint venture. Earlier application is permitted. 

 - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’: This standard will supersede IAS 17 ‘Leases’, January 01, 2019
   IFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27 upon its effective date. 
  
 - Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in January 01, 2020
   IFRS Standards.
   

 -  Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ January 01, 2020
   and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
   Estimates and Errors’ - Amendments regarding the
   definition of material. 
  
 -  Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Amendments January 01, 2019
   regarding plan amendments, curtailments or settlements. 
  
 -  Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint January 01, 2019
   Ventures’ - Amendments regarding long-term interests in
   an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment
   in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method
   is not applied.  
  
 -  IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’: Clarifies the January 01, 2019
   accounting treatment in relation to determination of taxable profit
   (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
   and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax
   treatments under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’. 
  
 Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.    

 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:    
  

 - IFRS 1 – First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards   
- IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts       
- IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts         
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      
 

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with 
those of the previous years’ financial statements except for the change in accounting policies as 
explained in note 4.1 and 4.2.         

4.1 Adoption of IFRS 15 - Revenue form contracts with customers     
 

 IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and related interpretations. 
The Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed 
under the Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical 
expedients) of initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented 
for comparative period in these financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is presented, as 
previously reported under IAS 18 and related interpretations.      
 

 Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a contractual promise to a customer (performance 
obligation) has been fulfilled by transferring control over the promised goods and services to the 
customer. Revenue is primarily generated from the sale of finished product to customers. Those sales 
predominantly contain a single delivery element and revenue is recognised at a single point in time 
when ownership, risks and rewards transfer.  Management has concluded that revenue from sale of 
goods be recognised at the point in time when control of the product has transferred, being when the 
products are delivered to the customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been delivered to the 
customer’s destination, the risks of loss have been transferred to the customer and the customer has 
accepted the product. Accordingly, the timing of revenue recognition is not materially impacted by the 
new standard.          

  
 Trade promotions, consisting primarily of customer pricing allowances, in-store merchandising funds, 

advertising and other promotional activities, and consumer coupons, are offered through various 
programs to customers and consumers. The adoption of the new standard accelerated the accrual 
timing for certain portions of our customer and consumer promotional spending, which resulted in a 
cumulative reduction to Retained earnings of Rs. 31.291 million on the date of adoption.    
 

 A contract liability is recognised for expected discount payable to customers in relation to sales made 
until the end of the reporting period. Further the Company receives advances from its customers. 
Prior to adoption of IFRS 15, a provision for sales discounts and advance consideration received from 
customers was included in ‘Trade and other payables’ which now is reclassified in ‘Contract liabilities’ 
presented separately on statement of financial position. In addition, reclassification has been made from 
‘Trade and other payables’ to ‘Contract liabilities’ for outstanding balance of advance from customers 
and sales discounts payable for prior year to provide comparison.     

4.2 Adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments       
 

 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued on July 24, 2014. This standard is adopted locally by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on 
or after July 1, 2018, and consequently has been adopted by the Company. Accordingly, the Company 
has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments that continue to be recognised as at July 01, 
2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 
July 01, 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to instruments that continue to be recognised as at July 
01, 2018 have not been restated as allowed by IFRS 9.      
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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 IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for:        

 1) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,    
2) Impairment of financial assets, and         
 3) General hedge accounting.         

 Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Company’s financial statements 
are described below except the General Hedge Accounting which the Company does not apply. The 
Company has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.   

4.2.1 Classification and measurement          
 

 IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets:    

 - Measured at amortized cost (“AC”),        
 - Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and     
 - Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).        

 Financial asset at amortised cost         

 A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL;          

 1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and         

           
 2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.    
 

 Financial Asset at FVTOCI         
 

 A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

 1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

  
 2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.    

 FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to 
changes in fair value recognised in OCI.        

 Financial asset at FVTPL          

 All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.     

 In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.  
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 Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.     

 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, 
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the profit or loss.   

 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities      
 

 With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, 
IFRS 9 requires as follows:          

 - The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the 
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of 
such changes in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in 
profit or loss.         

 
 - Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified 

to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial 
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.    
 

 Impairment of financial assets         

 For financial assets measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of impairment based on 
expected credit loss (ECL) model rather than incurred credit loss model as previously required under 
IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the Company is required to measure loss allowance of an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk.        

 When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative 
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed 
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.      

 Measurement of ECLs          

 ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity and the cash 
flows that the Company expects to receive).        

 Impact of the new impairment model        

 The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are 
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted 
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both 
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of 
money where appropriate.  Given the Company’s experience of collection history and historical loss 
rates / bad debts and normal receivable aging, the move from an incurred loss model to an expected 
loss model has not had material impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of the 
Company therefore not accounted for in theses financial statements.     
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 For other financial assets, majority of the assets of the Company exposed to credit risk pertain to 
counter parties which have high credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial 
recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL would be very minimal and hence, 
the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.      

 Impact of change in accounting policies due to adoption of IFRS 9    
 

     Original New  Original New
  Financial assets and classification classification carrying value carrying
  financial liabilities as per as per as per old value as per
     IAS 39 IFRS 9 framework IFRS 9  

        
                                            ------------ Rupees in ‘000 ------------ 
 Financial assets     

      
 Long-term deposits LR AC  616   616 
 Trade debts  LR AC  168,062   168,062 
 Other receivables LR AC  168,076   168,076 
 Other financial assets HTM AC  5,000   5,000 
 Bank balances LR AC  1,092   1,092 
  
 Financial liabilities     

 
 Trade and other payables OFL AC  87,795   87,795 
 Contract liabilities OFL AC  45,983   45,983 
 Unclaimed dividend OFL AC  905   905 
 Short term running finance OFL AC  144,774   144,774 
 
 - “LR” is loans and receivables         

- “AC” is amortised cost         
 - “HTM” is held to maturity         

- “OFL” is other financial liabilities         

4.2.2 Measurement principles and provision        

 The measurement basis of financial instruments is determined as follows:    
 

 Basis of valuation of instruments at amortised cost      
  

 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as amortised cost are carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.        
 

 Gains or losses are also recognised in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortised 
cost are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.    
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4.3 Recognition of financial assets and liabilities       
  

 The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.         
 

 Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract 
or the contract is a derivative contract.        

4.4 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities       
 

 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or where the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.  
 

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired.          

           
4.5 Offsetting of financial instruments        

 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the statement of 

assets and liabilities if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either 
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.   

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents         
 

 For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
in hand, balances with banks and investments with maturities of less than three months or less from 
acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in fair value and short term borrowings 
availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s 
cash management.          

4.7 Trade debts, advances and other receivables       
  

 These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and 
measured at fair value of consideration receivable.       

4.8 Trade and other payables          

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and 
subsequently measured at amortised costs. 

4.9 Property, plant and equipment         

 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any. Residual 
values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with 
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Cost is depreciated 
over the estimated useful life of related assets under the straight line method except for capital work 
in progress which is stated at cost. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the 
asset is available for use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.    
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 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred. Cost of 
acquisition of display stands is also charged to profit and loss account directly.     

 Gains and losses on disposal of assets are recognized in profit and loss account.   

4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets        
  

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to ascertain whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the statement of profit or loss, for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined 
through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash generating units).    

  
 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extend that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.      

4.11 Operating lease          
 
 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are 

classified as operating lease. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit and loss 
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease (refer note 16.2).   

4.12 Stock-in-trade          
           
 Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Costs are determined by using 

the first-in, first-out method except for goods-in-transit which are valued at the actual cost accumulated 
to the balance sheet date. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of stocks includes 
expenditure incurred in acquiring / bringing the inventories items to their existing location and condition. 
Also, the provisions and write-offs for all damaged and obsolete stock-in-trade are made based on the 
specific identification of items of stock-in-trade by management.     

4.13 Taxation          
           
 Current          
           
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation and tax paid 

on presumptive basis. Income tax paid at import stage under Final Tax Regime (FTR) is recognised as 
tax expense in the period in which related goods are sold.      
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 Deferred          
           
 Deferred tax is not booked as the majority of the income of the Company falls under the Final Tax 

Regime of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Deferred tax impact on the income falling under normal tax 
regime is immaterial to the financial statements.       

4.14 Staff retirement benefits          

 Funded pension plan          

 The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e., approved funded pension fund scheme for all its 
permanent employees subject to prescribed qualifying age limit. Contributions are made to the fund 
on the basis of actuarial recommendations. Actuarial valuation is carried out using projected unit credit 
method.  As per the Company policy, only employees who opted for this scheme and all ex-employees 
continue to receive benefit under this scheme.       
 

 Under the plan, the pensionable benefit per year depends on the pensioner achieving either the normal 
retirement age or opting for the early retirement. The pensionable benefit also varies in case any 
pensioner dies.           

  
 The Trustees in their meeting held on December 4, 2018 has decided that effective from July 2018 

the monthly pension will be pegged with the minimum wage rate as announced by the Government of 
Pakistan for any financial year.  Further, they have also decided in the same meeting that the pension 
indexation will be applied from July (previously March) of every financial year and that the indexation 
will be equivalent to the yearly expected inflation rate as advised by the Actuary at the start of every 
financial year (previously 4.75% annual increase)       
 

 Details of the plan are given in note 12 to these financial statements.     

 Unfunded gratuity scheme         
 

 Effective from July 01, 2012, the Company has started to operate a defined benefit plan i.e. approved 
unfunded gratuity scheme for all its current permanent employees, with the exception of those 
employees receiving (or are eligible to receive) benefit under approved funded pension scheme, 
subject to the prescribed qualifying age limit. This scheme is unfunded and actuarial valuation is carried 
out using projected unit credit method. As per the Company policy, all new employees would be entitled 
to this gratuity scheme only.          

 Defined contribution plan          

 The Company operates an approved funded provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. 
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and its employees, to the fund at the rate 
of 10 per cent of basic salaries of employees.       

4.15 Provisions          
           
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has the legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 

events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations. However, 
provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
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4.16 Foreign currency translation         
 

 Transactions in foreign currencies  are recorded into Pak Rupee at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of transaction. At each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. 
Exchange gains and losses are included in profit and loss account in the year in which they arise. 

4.17 Interest and investment income          
 

 Mark-up / return on bank balances / investment income is recognised on a time proportionate basis on 
the principal amount outstanding by applying the effective interest rate.     

4.18 Dividend          
           
 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial 

statements in the periods in which the dividends are approved by the appropriate authority.  

4.19 Earnings per share          

 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined 
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.   

4.20 Borrowing costs          
           
 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 

assets are capitalized, whereas, other borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit or loss.  

4.21 Transition to IFRS 15 - Revenue form contracts with customers     
 

 Accounting policies applied to sales of goods prior to July 01, 2018.     
 

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue from sale 
of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards are transferred to customer, which coincides with 
physical release of shipment of goods from warehouse of the Company except in the case of export 
where risks and rewards are only transferred to the customer at designated points as agreed between 
the Company and the customer.         

4.22 Transition to IFRS 9 - Financial instruments       
  

 Accounting policies applied to financial instruments prior to July 01, 2018.    
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4.22.1 Trade debts and other receivables        
  

 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade debts is estimated 
when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amount due according 
to the original terms of the receivables. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit and loss account within 
‘administrative expenses’. When a trade debt is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance 
account for trade debts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to ‘other 
income’ in the profit and loss account.        

4.22.2 Impairment of financial assets         

 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that 
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account 
against loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on impaired assets 
continues to be recognised through unwinding of discount. If an event occurring subsequent to the 
recognition of impairment causes reversal of the impairment loss, the reversal in impairment loss is 
made through profit and loss account.        

4.22.3 Investments          
           
 Recognition          
           
 All purchases and sales of investments are recognised using trade date accounting. Trade date is the 

date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.      
 

 Held-to-maturity          
           
 Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity 
investments are initially recognised at cost inclusive of transaction cost and are subsequently carried 
at amortized cost using effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. This method uses 
an effective interest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life 
of the investment to its net carrying amount. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement 
when the investments are de-recognised or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 
 

 Derecognition          
           
 All investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have 

expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
of ownership.
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      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

5. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS    
 

 Central Depository Company Limited - registration deposit  37   37 
 Employee medical insurance deposit   101   101 
 Marine insurance deposit   300   300 
 Security deposit to suppliers   178   178 
      616   616 
6. STOCK-IN-TRADE    

      
6.1 Breakup of stock-in-trade is as follows:    

    
 Finished goods   

 - on hand 6.2 & 6.3  211,391   310,465 
  - in transit   120,212   113,861 
  
 Stock-in-trade before provision and written off   331,603   424,326 
  Provision due to slow-moving and obsolete inventory 6.4  (343)  (289)
 Stock written off   (4,468)  (41,956)
       326,792   382,081 

6.2 Stock-in-trade includes goods costing Rs. Nil (June 30, 2018: 8.493 million) written down by Rs. Nil (June 
30, 2018: Rs. 3.943 million) to net realizable value amounting to Rs. Nil  (June 30, 2018: 4.586 million).

6.3 Finished goods are held at a third party warehouse under a service agreement.    

6.4 Movement of provision due to slow-moving and non-performing inventory is as follows: 

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

  
 Opening balance   289   6,832 
 Transfer of provision to stock written-off   (289)  (6,832)
 Charge for the year  343  289 
 Closing balance   343   289 

7. TRADE DEBTS          
           
 Unsecured - considered good  156,356   168,062 
           
7.1 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit period on sale of goods ranges from 22 days 

to 32 days (June 30, 2018: 31 days to 32 days) for Blades & Razors products .    
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7.2 Aging of trade debts          

 June 30, 2019 Not yet due 1-22 23-96 Above 96 
     days days days

                                                     --------------------------- Rupees in ‘000 -------------------------- 
   

 Neither due nor impaired  132,687   -     -     -   
 Past due but not impaired  -     23,417   3   249 
 Past due and impaired  -     -     -     -   
      132,687   23,417   3   249 
 June 30, 2018     

 
 Neither due nor impaired  150,271   -     -     -   
 Past due but not impaired  -     17,725   50   16 
 Past due and impaired  -     -     -     -   
      150,271   17,725   50   16

      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS    
 

 Cash margin on imports 8.1  69,602   83,641  
Receivable from pension fund 12.1.2  4,924   36,041  
Receivable from related party - net   -     84,259  
Interest receivable on term deposits   1,029   176  
Prepayments  4,817   988  
Others    758   -   

      81,130   205,105  

8.1 This represents cash margin held under lien by the Bank as per BPRD Circular 2 of 2017 issued by 
State Bank of Pakistan which requries Bank to obtain 100% cash margin on the import of certain items.

      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
  

  

 Term deposits 9.1  557,312   5,000  

9.1 Term deposit includes;
  

  

 - having maturity of more than 3 months 9.1.1  5,000   5,000 
 - having maturity of upto 3 months 9.1.2  552,312   -   
      557,312   5,000  

9.1.1 This represents term deposit, having maturity period of one year and effective interest rates 8.35% 
(June 30, 2018: 3.5%) per annum. This deposit kept as cash collateral for employees’ corporate credit 
cards.     
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9.1.2 This represents term deposits, having maturity period of 4 to 14 days and effective interest rates 10.5% 
to 11.15% (June 30, 2018: Nil) per annum.    

      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

10. BANK BALANCES    
 

 Current account  4,343   895  
Savings account 10.1 1,282   197  
     5,625   1,092  

10.1 These are balances maintained with commercial banks. The effective interest rate on the account is 
11.5% (June 30, 2018: 5.5%) per annum.   

11. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL   

   June 30,  June 30, June 30, June 30,
     2019  2018 2019 2018
 -------- Number of  Shares --------   -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------
       
     Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid:   

  15,936,000   15,936,000     - In Cash  159,360   159,360 
      3,264,000   3,264,000    - Other than cash  32,640   32,640 
    19,200,000   19,200,000    192,000   192,000

11.1 The Series Acquisition B.V., Netherlands, and its nominees held 17,548,574 (91.4%) (June 30, 2018: 
17,548,574 (91.4%)) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of the Company. The ultimate parent of the 
Company is The Procter & Gamble Company (P&G), USA.   

11.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. The holders of 
the shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 
per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual 
assets.       

11.3 There was no movement in ordinary shares during the year.    

11.4 The Company has no reserved shares for issuance under options and sales contracts.  

12. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS    

12.1 Funded post retirement pension and unfunded gratuity schemes   

12.1.1 The actuarial valuation of pension plan was carried out at June 30, 2019. The projected unit credit 
method, using the following significant financial assumptions, has been used for the actuarial 
valuation: 
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     June 30,  June 30,  
    2019  2018

     Pension  Gratuity  Pension  Gratuity

 - Discount rate - per annum compound 13.25% 14.50% 10.00% 10.00%
 - Expected rate of increase in salaries
   per annum  -    14.50%  -    10.00%
 - Expected rate of return on plan assets
   per annum 13.25%   -    10.00%   -   
 - Pension indexation rate - per annum 8.80%   -    4.75%   -   
            
 Mortality rates assumed were based on the State Life Insurance Corporation (SLIC) 2001-05 ultimate 

mortality rates.

12.1.2 Statement of financial position reconciliation     
 

 Fair value of plan assets  (103,744)  -     (130,902)  -    
Present value of defined benefit obligation  98,820   11,572   94,861   10,725  
(Asset) / liability carried forward in

    the balance sheet  (4,924)  11,572   (36,041) 10,725  

12.1.3 Movement in fair value of plan assets     
  

 Fair value at beginning of the year  130,902   -     129,955   -  
 Interest income  11,462   -     11,627   -
 Remeasurement on post retirement benefits  (6,053)  -     (2,174)  -  
 Benefits paid  (4,977)  -     (4,006)  -   
 (Withdrawls) / contribution made by
    the Company   (27,590)  -     (4,500)  -  
 Fair value at the end of the year  103,744   -     130,902   -   

12.1.4 Movement in defined benefit obligation     
  

 Obligation at beginning of the year  94,861   10,725   97,865   9,166
 Current service cost  -     1,064   -     1,249  

Interest cost  9,237   1,001   8,867   841  
Past service cost - vested  6,893   -     -     -    
Transfer liability payable to P&G Pakistan  -     (1,183)  -     -    
Remeasurement on post retirement benefits (7,194)  679   (7,865)  (391) 
Benefits paid  (4,977)  (714)  (4,006)  (140) 
Obligation at the end of the year  98,820   11,572   94,861   10,725  

12.1.5 Charged to profit and loss account     

 Current service cost  -     1,064   -     1,249  
Past service cost - vested  6,893   -     -     -    
Net interest (income) / cost  (2,225)  1,001   (2,760)  841  
     4,668   2,065   (2,760)  2,090  
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     June 30,  June 30,  
    2019  2018

     Pension  Gratuity  Pension  Gratuity

                                                                      ----------------------Rupees in ‘000------------------------- 

12.1.6 Recorded in statement of other comprehensive income   
 Actuarial (gain) / loss arising due to changes in :     

 
 Demographic assumptions (8,175)  -     -     -    

Financial assumptions  -     -     (8,127)  -    
Experience adjustment  7,034   679   2,436   (391) 
     (1,141)  679    (5,691)  (391)

12.1.7 Actual return on plan assets is as follows:     
 

 Interest income 11,462   -     11,627   -    
Remeasurement on post retirement benefits  (6,053)  -     (2,174)  -    
Actual return on plan assets 5,409   -     9,453   -    

12.1.8 Detail of plan assets     
 

 Pakistan Investment Bonds  11,296   -     74,515   -    
Term Deposit Receipts  52,960   -     49,899   -    
Units of Mutual Funds  2,449   -     3,426   -    
Cash at bank  37,810   -     3,062   -    
     104,515   -     130,902   -    

12.1.9 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:  
      

                                                                   Impact on obligation of change in assumption 
     Pension Gratuity 
     Changes Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
     in in in in in
     assumptions assumption assumption assumption assumption
                                                                
                                                               ------------------------ Rupees --------------------------- 
   
 Discount rate 1%  89,691   109,483   10,190  13,228  

Pension / salary increase 1% 108,641   90,247   13,270   10,134  
Mortality age  1 year   101,245   96,560   11,572   11,573 

                                    June 30,
                                   2019 
      Pension Gratuity

12.1.10 Weighted average plan duration  10.01 years   13.09 years  

12.1.11 The number of employees covered under the pension fund and gratuity scheme are Nil (June 30, 2018: 
Nil) and 5 (June 30, 2018: 5) respectively.    
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12.1.12 The company do not expect to make any contribution to the defined benefit scheme during the 
next financial year because the fair value of plan assets is more than present value of defined benefit 
obligation.    

12.2 The Company maintains the fund of provident fund in a separate trust. As at year end, Company has 
invested surplus fund of the trust in listed collective investment scheme and savings account which is 
in accordance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017  

      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES    

 Trade creditors 13.1  235,245   -    
Other payable   76,247   43,997  
Accrued liabilities 13.2  128,630   43,798  
Payable to Workers’ Welfare Fund 13.3  9,064   9,064  
      449,186   96,859 

13.1 This represents payable to related party, Procter and Gamble International Operations SA (PGIO). 
 

13.2 This includes payable to following related parties:
      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

 Procter & Gamble Pakistan (Private) Limited   23,684   14,206  
Procter & Gamble International Operations SA-ROHQ   9,848   4,354  
      33,532   18,560 

13.3 Movement of the Workers’ Welfare Fund payable is as follows:    
 

 Opening balance  9,064   10,371  
(Reversal) / provision for the year 22.1  -     (1,307) 
Closing balance   9,064   9,064  

14. CONTRACT LIABILITIES    
 

 Advance from customer  13,436   14,986  
Discount accruals  69,507   45,983  
     82,943   60,969  

15. SHORT TERM RUNNING FINANCE    
 

 In 2018, the Company entered into an arrangement of short term running finance facility of Rs. 600 
million with Citi Bank. It caries interest at the rate of one month KIBOR+1% per annum. This facility is 
secured against the stand by letter of credit issued by Citi Bank London to Citi Bank Pakistan on behalf 
of P&G Global.
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      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------
 
 Opening as at July 01  144,774   -    

Proceeds during the year   -     2,448,503  
Repayments made during the year   (144,774)  (2,303,729) 
      

 Closing as at June 30    -      144,774 

16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS     

16.1 Contingencies     

16.1.1 The income tax assessments of the Company have been completed up to and including tax year 2018 
(i.e. year ended on June 30, 2018). The tax returns for the tax years from 2003 to 2018 are treated as 
assessment orders under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 on the date returns were 
filed, unless amended otherwise.     

 In respect of assessment years 2000-2001 and 2001-2002, the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 
made certain additions / disallowances which resulted in additional tax liability amounting to Rs. 49.422 
million and Rs. 8.247 million respectively. The Company then filed appeal before the ATIR where some 
relief was granted while other issues were confirmed against the Company vide combined appellate 
order dated November 28, 2015. The Company has also filed reference on all the issues decided by 
ATIR against the Company before Honorable High Court of Sindh which is pending for adjudication.  

 In respect of the above, the Company has made a payment of the full amount and made a provision of 
Rs. 41.875 million in previous years which management believes based on the advice of its tax advisor 
is sufficient to cover any future obligation of the Company.    

16.1.2 The Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed an appeal in the High Court of Sindh against the order of 
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, issued in favour of the Company for the years 1999-2000 and 2000-
01. The case pertained to alleged incorrect payment / short payment of sales tax by the Company on 
various transactions in these years. The initial demand of sales tax and additional tax raised by the tax 
department was amounting to Rs. 34.5 million. The Company is now pursuing the case in the Court; 
however, no provision has been made in these financial statements as the management anticipates 
based on the advice of its legal advisor that the case would be decided in the favour of the Company.  

16.1.3 In 2007, an ex-employee of the Company filed a case regarding payment of severance cost and 
provident fund amounting to Rs. 28.899 million in the High Court of Sindh (the Court). In response, 
a written statement was filed by the Company on September 29, 2007 and subsequently the issues 
were filed by the Company on May 10, 2008. Through order dated November 20, 2007, the Court has 
instructed to record evidence in this matter. This matter will now come up for recordal of evidence in 
September 2019. However, based on the advice from the Company’s legal advisor, at this stage, it 
would not be possible to determine the outcome of the aforesaid case. Therefore, the management has 
not made any provision against this case in these financial statements.    
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16.1.4 In 2018, the Company received a notice on to obtain information or evidence under section 176 of the 
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 for the audit of tax periods from July 2015 to June 2016. Subsequently, 
after the proceedings of the audit, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order dated 
April 03, 2018, for the demand of Rs. 71.626 million including Rs. 54.673 and Rs. 16.953 on account 
of demand u/s 161 and default surcharge u/s 205 and penalty u/s 182 (1) (15) on account of failure 
to collect or deduct tax at source u/s 156 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. In this respect, an appeal 
was filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) against the above mentioned order, 
however, the CIRA vide appellate order dated May 22, 2018 has confirmed the levy raised by DCIR u/s 
161. An appeal against the aforesaid appellate order has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland 
Revenue (ATIR) which is pending. Moreover, the Sindh High Court (SHC) vide interim order dated 
May 25, 2018 in CP No. 4148 of 2018 has refrained the tax authorities from taking any coercive action 
on account of demand raised till the decision of ATIR. However, no provision has been made in these 
financial statements as the management anticipates based on the legal advice of its legal advisor that 
the case would be decided in the favour of the Company.  

16.1.5 During the year, the Company received an order dated April 29, 2019 from Additional Commissioner, 
Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA)  in respect of financial years 2016, 2017 and 2018 for alleged short 
withholding and deposit of the sales tax withholding on various payments related to advertisement 
and sales promotion, auditor’s remuneration, legal and professional services and warehousing and 
transportation amounting to Rs. 45.72 million. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner 
Appeal against the order on May 29, 2019. Moreover, the Lahore High Court (LHC) vide interim order 
dated June 17, 2019 in CP No. W.P.No. 36500 of 2019 has refrained the tax authorities from taking any 
coercive action on account of demand raised till the decision of ATIR. The management anticipates 
based on the advice of its tax advisor that the case would be decided in the favor of the Company. 
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.  

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

16.2 Commitments     
 

 Rental due under operating lease arrangements in respect of vehicles:   

 Not later than one year   3,612   1,638  
Later than one year but not later than five years   9,807   1,212  
      13,419   2,850  

16.2.1 The commitment relates to operating leases of vehicles with lease term of 4 years.  
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      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

17. SALES - NET
    

 
 - Local

Gross sales 

 2,609,968   2,387,897 
 - Export  17.1  -     24,697 
 - Scrap sales 17.2  -     40,311  

      2,609,968   2,452,905  
Trade discounts   (268,021)  (277,229) 
Sales tax    (379,226)  (346,959) 
     1,962,721   1,828,717  

17.1 Export sales are being made in Afghanistan through a sole distributor by way of Good Declarations.  

17.2 This represents export scrap sales made to a third party.
      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

   
18. COST OF GOODS SOLD    

 Opening stock of finished goods   382,081   582,269  
Purchases of finished goods   1,255,477   1,033,371  
     1,637,558   1,615,640  
Closing stock of finished goods   (326,792)  (382,081) 
    18.1  1,310,766   1,233,559  

18.1 Finished goods have been written down to net realizable value by Rs. Nil (June 30, 2018: Rs. 3.943 
million) and are charged to cost of goods sold.

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

19. SELLING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES    

 Advertising and sales promotion   217,889  223,201  
Warehousing and transportation   55,453  71,485  
Salaries, wages and other benefits   39,024   26,243  
Traveling and conveyance   3,062   1,267  
Rent, rates and taxes  12,398   13,525  
Others    712   500  
      328,538   336,221 
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      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 -------- 

20. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    
 

 Salaries, wages and other benefits  21,524   9,562  
Legal and outsourced professional services   17,914   8,606  
Rent, rates and taxes   1,955   6,561  
Auditors’ remuneration  1,560   1,400  
Traveling and conveyance  1,396   1,812  
Others   1,437  1,191

       45,786   29,132  

20.1 Auditors’ remuneration    
 

 Audit fee   883   840  
Half yearly review  491   486  
Review of compliance with Code of Corporate Governance   28   28  
Other services  107   -    
Out of pocket expenses   51   46 

      1,560   1,400  

21. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES    

 Exchange loss - net  36,462   63,457  
Stocks written off  4,468   41,956  
Provision for obsolete stock  343   289  
Others   538  1,515

      41,811   107,217  

22. OTHER INCOME    
 

 Interest income on term deposits and saving accounts   28,446   1,603  
Reversal of Workers’ Welfare Fund (WWF) 22.1  -     1,307  
Others    1,798   -   

       30,244   2,910

22.1 The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) in its decision dated November 10, 2016 has held that the 
amendment made in the definition of ‘Industrial Establishment’ vide Finance Act, 2008 (which extended 
the scope to any establishment on which West Pakistan Shops and Establishment Ordinance, 
1969 applied) as unconstitutional as a result the Company can no longer be treated as “industrial 
establishment” for the purposes of levy of WWF under WWF Ordinance, 1971. After the above decision 
of SCP, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) had filed review petition which is still pending for hearing.

In view of the above, the management based on the advice of its tax advisor has decided to not to 
create any further provision along with reversal of any provision with respect to WWF that was created 
after the SCP decision. Hence, as result no provision has been booked in the current year, however, 
as a matter of prudence the Company has decided to not to reverse any provision that was booked 
in the financial statements before the SCP decision. The above position will be reviewed upon by the 
management after final decision by SCP on the aforementioned review petition.  

20.1
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      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------
23. INCOME TAX EXPENSE     

 
 Current year tax 23.1  94,132   112,246  

Prior year tax   (54)  -    
     94,078   112,246  

23.1 The tax charge for the year includes the following:    
  

 - tax under Final Tax Regime on commercial imports  85,883   111,765 
 - tax under Normal Tax Regime on interest income   8,249   481  

      94,132   112,246 
23.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit    

 Accounting profit for the year  258,471   116,568  
Tax rate   29% 30% 
Tax charge   74,957   34,970  
Prior year tax   (54)  -    
Effect of taxes paid under Final Tax Regime   19,229   77,276  
     94,132   112,246 

23.3 According to the management, the tax provision made in the financial statements is sufficient.   

23.4 The Company computes tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure 
that the sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available which can be analyzed as follows:  

 Fiscal Year Provision for Tax Excess
     taxation assessed 
 
 2017 / 18   112,246  103,875  8,371  

2016 / 17  110,045  104,092  5,953 
 2015 / 16   103,817  102,680  1,137

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED    

 Profit for the year (Rupees in ‘000)  164,393   4,322  

 Weighted average number of ordinary    
    shares outstanding during the year (Number of shares)  19,200,000   19,200,000  

 Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)  8.56   0.23 
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      June 30, June 30,
     Note 2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

 Bank balances 10  5,625   1,092  
Term deposits having maturity up to 3 months 9  552,312   -    
Short term running finance 15  -     (144,774) 
      557,937   (143,682) 

26. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS    
 

 Profit before tax   258,471   116,568  
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:    
 Expense recognised / (reversed) on employee benefits   

    - pension 12.1.5  4,668   (2,760) 
Expense recognised on employee benefits - gratuity 12.1.5  2,065   2,090  
Interest expense  15  7,376   8,679  
Exchange loss - net 21  36,462   63,457  
Stock-in-trade written down to net realizable value 6.2  -     3,943  
Provision due to slow moving and obsolete inventory 6.4  343   289  
Stocks written off 6  4,468   41,956  
Interest income on term deposits and saving accounts 22  (28,446)  (1,603) 
Working capital changes 27  478,987   (360,064) 
      764,394   (127,445) 

27. WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES     
       

 (Increase) / decrease in current assets:    
  

 Stock-in-trade  50,478   154,000  
Trade debts  11,706   79,958  
Trade deposits   (896)  34  
Sales tax refundable   17,440   (6,139) 
Other receivables  93,711   204,670  
      172,439   432,523  
 (Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:    
  

 Trade and other payables   284,574   (780,423) 
Contract liabilities  21,974   (12,164) 
      306,548   (792,587) 
      478,987   (360,064) 
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28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
  
 The related parties comprise the holding company (The Series Acquisition B.V., Netherlands), 

the ultimate parent company (The Procter & Gamble Company, USA), related group companies, 
companies in which directors have interest, staff retirement benefit plans, directors of the Company, 
key management personnel and close member of the family of all the aforementioned related parties. 
The Company carries out transactions with various related parties at agreed terms. Amount due from 
and to related parties are shown under ‘other receivables’ and ‘trade and other payables’, whereas 
remuneration of directors, chief executive and executives are disclosed in note 29. Other significant 
transactions with related parties are as follows: 

       June 30,  June 30, 
       2019 2018
                              ----- Rupees in ‘000 ------
 Name  Relationship with Nature of
     the Company transaction

 Procter and Gamble Associate due to Purchases of 973,666 1,041,221
 International Operations common parent finished goods
 SA, Lancy company    

    
      Reimbursement -     1,422 

       of expenses
 
 Procter and Gamble Associate due to Expenses 102,688 102,737
 Pakistan (Private)  common parent reimbursed to   

Limited  company       

      Expenses  21,381   26,455 
      reimbursed from   

 Procter and Gamble Associate due to Services received  6,963   3,986
 International common parent    

Operations company  
 S.A, ROHQ 
        
 The Series Acquisition Holding Dividend 21,936 12,858 

 B.V., Netherlands Company    
    

 Gillette Pakistan Retirement Contribution to 1,390 1,309 
 Provident Fund benefit plan provident fund   

 Gillette Pakistan Retirement Income from  2,225  2,760 
  Pension Fund benefit plan pension fund   

      Past service cost  6,893   -    

 Name  Country of Incorporation 
 

 Procter and Gamble International Operations SA, Lancy Switzerland   
Procter and Gamble International Operations S.A, ROHQ Philippines   
The Series Acquisition B.V, Netherlands Netherlands  
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29. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES   

29.1 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for remuneration, including certain 
benefits to the Chief Executive, the Director and Executives of the Company are as follows:

                                                        Chief Executive                           Executives 
     June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
     2019 2018 2019 2018
                           -------------------------- Rupees in ‘000 ----------------------- 

 
 Basic salary  6,629   6,383   6,721   7,307  

Bonus   391   615   -     -    
Housing allowance  2,983   2,872   3,025   3,288  
Leave fare assistance  994   957   1,008   1,096  
Utilities allowance  663  638   672   731  
Retirement benefits  1,264   1,147   539   943  
Others   702   3,406   929   760  
     13,626   16,018   12,894   14,125  

 Number of persons  1   1   3  4 

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018

 Number of employees as at year end    5   5  
Average number of employees during the year    5   6  

29.2 Chief Executive and executives of the company are also provided with free use of company maintained 
cars.      

29.3 The aggregate amount of fees paid to two (June 30, 2018: one) non-executive directors is Rs. 550,000 
( June 30, 2018: Rs. 240,000).     

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT     

30.1 Financial instruments by category     

 The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below and 
disclosed in note 4.    
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                   June 30, 2019                     June 30, 2018 
      At amortised  Held to Loans
     cost maturity and
       receivables
                                                                    -------------------- Rupees in ‘000 --------------------  

 Financial assets      
 

 Long-term deposits  616   -     616  
Trade debts   156,356   -     168,062  
Other receivables  71,389   -    168,076  
Other financial assets  557,312   5,000   -    
Bank balances  5,625   -     1,092  
     791,298   5,000   337,846  

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
      At amortised Other
      cost financial
       liabilities
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

 Financial liabilities      

 Short term running finance   -   144,774  
Trade and other payables   440,122   87,795  
Contract liabilities   69,507   45,983  
Unclaimed dividend   4,380   905 

       514,009   279,457 
30.2 Financial risk factors     

 The Company is exposed to market risk (including interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk), 
credit risk and liquidity risk arising from its business activities. The Company’s overall risk management 
strategy seeks to minimize adverse effects from the unpredictability of risk factors on the Company’s 
financial performance.     

 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of financial risk management for the 
Company. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight responsibility, the management has been 
made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing the Company’s financial risk exposures.  

30.2.1 Market risk     

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market variables.  Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
price risk and currency risk. The exposure to these risks and their management is explained below:  
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 i. Interest rate risk     
 

  Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

     Carrying amount
      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

   Fixed rate instruments    
  

   Financial assets    
  Other financial assets   557,312   5,000  
  

   Financial liabilities    
  Short-term running finance   -     144,774  

   Variable rate instruments    
  Financial assets    
  Bank balances  1,282  197 

   Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments    
  

  The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest / mark-up rate at the reporting date would not affect 
profit and loss account.    

  Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments    

  As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds balance in savings accounts exposing the Company 
to cash flow interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in interest on bank 
balances, with all other variables held constant, the net income and net assets would have been 
higher / lower by Rs. 50,710 (June 30, 2018: Rs. 5,000)    

 ii. Price risk     

  Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

The Company is not exposed to any kind of price risk.    

  As the Company is not exposed to price risks, therefore, no sensitivity analysis is provided for this 
risk. 
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 iii. Currency risk    

  Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with 
foreign undertakings and bank balances in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to foreign 
currency risk is as follows;

     GBP USD     EURO Total
      --------------- Rupees in ‘000 ---------------
   June 30, 2019     

  
   Other receivables  -     -     -     -   
   Trade and other payables  -     (9,848)  (235,245)  (245,093)
   Net exposure  -     (9,848)  (235,245)  (245,093)
   
   June 30, 2018     

  
   Other Receivables  -     -     84,259   84,259 
   Trade and other payables  (425)  (4,354)  -     (4,779)
   
   Net exposure  (425)  (4,354)  84,259   79,480 
  
  In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company 

ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level and balance the risk itself. 
 

  The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

                               Average rate                       Reporting date rate 
     2019 2018 2019 2018 

  Rupees per                                                          ------------------------- Rupees ------------------------ 

  USD   136.40  110.07  163.24  121.63
  EURO  155.49  131.43  185.62  141.59
  GBP   176.51   148.40   206.84  159.49
  
  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis     

  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, Euro 
and GBP exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, on the Company’s profit before tax 
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

     Change in rate  GBP USD EURO Total
                                                                         ---------------------- Rupees in ‘000  ---------------------- 

  June 30, 2019 +10%  -     (985)  (23,525)  (24,509)
    -10%  -     985   23,525   24,509 
  
  June 30, 2018 +10%  (43)  (435)  8,426   7,948 
    -10%  43   435   (8,426)  (7,948)
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30.2.2 Credit risk        
 

 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party 
by failing to discharge an obligation.       
 

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as follows:

      June 30, June 30,
      2019 2018
     -------- Rupees in ‘000 --------

 Long-term deposits   616   616 
 Trade debts   156,356   168,062 
 Other receivables   71,389   168,076 
 Other financial assets  557,312   5,000 
 Bank balances   5,625   1,092 
       791,298   342,846 
 
 Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls 

relating to customer credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all customers. Outstanding 
customer receivables are regularly monitored and shipments are only made if the credit history of the 
customer is clean.        

 Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by treasury in accordance with the Company’s policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties.    

 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for trade debts, other 
receivables, deposits with banks and other financial assets. The names and credit ratings of banks, 
where the Company maintains its bank balance are as follows.

 Name of  bank Rating agency Credit rating
      Short-term Long-term 

 Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AAA
 Citibank, N.A. Moody’s P-1 AA3
 Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ AAA

30.2.3 Liquidity risk        
 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required 
to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or encounters difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.  
 

 The financial liabilities of the Company are analyzed into the relevant maturity buckets based on their 
contractual maturity dates in the table below:     
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    Carrying Contractual Less
     Amount Cash Flow  than 1 

      month 
                                                                 ----------------- Rupees in ‘000 ---------------- 

 June 30, 2019    
 

 Trade and other payables  440,122   (440,122)  (440,122)
 Contract liabilities  69,507   (69,507)  (69,507)
 Unclaimed dividend  4,380   (4,380)  (4,380)
 
 June 30, 2018    

 Trade and other payables  87,795   (87,795)  (87,795)
 Contract liabilities 45,983   (45,983)  (45,983)
 Short-term running finance 144,774    144,774   144,774 
 Unclaimed dividend  905   905   905 
 
 Management closely monitors the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position by maintaining availability 

of financing through banking arrangements.       

30.3 Fair value estimation        
 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can 
arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.     

 Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without 
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.        

 The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements 
approximate their fair values as they are short term in nature.    

30.3.1 Fair Value Hierarchy        
 

 The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to 
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is 
observable.        

 Level - 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities.        
 

 Level - 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included 
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).        

 Level - 3 fair value measurement are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for 
the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
   



60

ACCOUNTS
JUNE

ANNUAL

2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 As at June 30, 2019, the Company does not hold any financial instrument, which can be categorised 
in any of the above levels.        

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT        

 The Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:   

 - to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
  provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and     

 - to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately
  with the level of risk. 
        
 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends 

paid to shareholders or issue new shares. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity 
comprising issued share capital and unappropriated profit. The Company’s overall strategy remains 
unchanged from 2018.        

 The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.    

32. CORRESPONDING FIGURES        

 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of 
comparison and to reflect the substance of the transaction.      

33. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE       

 These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and 
authorised for issue on September 30, 2019.     

34. GENERAL        

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee.

KHALID AHMED FARID
Chief Executive Officer

SYED IRSHAD HASSAN
Chief Financial Officer

SYED DANISH HUSSIAN SHAH
Director
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on October 25, 2019 at the Sapphire Hall, 
Ramada Karachi Creek, Zulfiqar street-1, DHA Phase VIII, Karachi at 09:15am to transact the following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 23, 2018.
2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, together 

with reports of the directors and auditors.
3. To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2020 and fix their remuneration. Messers. Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered 

Accountants, the present auditors have retired and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.
4. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Moosa Haroon  October 04, 2019
Company Secretary  Karachi

NOTES
Closure of Share Transfer Books: The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 17, 2019 to 
October 25, 2019 (Both Days included) during which no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration. Transfers in good order, 
received by Company’s registrar, FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Ltd 8-F, Near Faran Hotel, Nursury, Block-6, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi by close of business on October 16, 2019 will be treated on time for ascertaining the entitlement of shareholders for the 
purpose of attending and vote at Annual General Meeting.

Participation in Annual General Meeting: A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the above said meeting is entitled to 
appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her and proxy as appointed shall have such rights, 
as respects attending, speaking and voting at the above said meeting as are available to the Member.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular no. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Duly completed, signed and stamped instrument of proxy(as enclosed) and the other authority under which it is signed, or a 
notarially certified copy thereof in order to be valid, must be lodged with the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. The proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A. For Attending the Meeting: In case of the individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Central Depositary Company of Pakistan 
Limited Regulations shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original computerized CNIC or original passport at 
the time of attending meeting. In case of corporate entity/trust, the Board of Directors/Trustees resolution/power of Attorney 
with specimen signature of nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting. The members registered on CDC are also 
requested to bring their particulars, IDs and account numbers in CDS.

B. E-Voting: Members can exercise their right to vote under applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

Mandatory Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode and Submissions of Copies of Valid CNIC & NTN certificates:

• The Provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend payable in cash shall 
only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders, Accordingly, the 
shareholders, holding physical sharers are requested to provide their IBAN information on  Dividend Mandate Form to the 
Company’s Share Registrar. In case of CDC account holders, the same information should be provided directly to the CDS 
participants/CDC investor Account Services. The Company or its share Registrar cannot act on any request received directly 
from members holding shares in electronic from for any change of bank particulars or bank mandate. The Mandate Form is 
also available at the Company’s website i.e. www.gillettepakistan.com
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• The designated bank account details should be of the title holder of the shares or Account title in Central Depository Company 
System.

• Individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC and Corporate Entities who have not yet 
submitted their NTN are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s share registrar. Please 
also provide Folio No. with the Copy of CNIC/NTN, the Company would withhold further dividend payments to such 
shareholders as per the provision of Section 243(3) of the Companies Act 2017 and Regulation 6 of the Companies 
(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017.

Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Mandatory)

(i) Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act 2017 effective July 1, 2019, the rates of deduction of income tax from dividend 
payments under the Income Tax Ordinance have been revised as follows:

1. Shareholders appearing on Active Tax-payers List: 15%          2.     Shareholders Not appearing on Active Tax-payers List: 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, shareholders whose names 
are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised 
to immediately make sure that that their names are entered in ATL, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% 
instead of 15%.

(ii) Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income, shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax exemption certificate is made 
available to FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Ltd., by the first day of Book Closure. 

• According to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined separately on 
‘Filer/Non-filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint 
accounts.  

• In this regard all shareholders either holding shares in physical form or in CDC, who hold shares jointly are requested to 
provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them (only if not 
already provided) to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

• The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice; otherwise it will be assumed that the 
shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

Submission of Zakat Exemption: Members are requested to submit declaration as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980 for Zakat 
exemption.

Change of Address: Members are requested to communicate to the Company’s registrar any change in their address.
Shareholders are requested to provide above mentioned information/documents to (i) respective Central Depository System (CDS) 
Participants and (ii) in case of physical securities to the Company’s Registrar.

Circulation of Notice of Meeting & Annual Accounts: The Securities and Exchange Commission (SECP) vide SRO No. 
470(I)/2016, has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their 
registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from shareholders in General meeting. 
Accordingly, the Company has obtained approval from members in the 30th AGM held on Oct 24, 2017. Pursuant to approval of the 
members, as aforesaid, the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, have been 
circulated to the members through CD/DVD/USB.

Conversion of shares in book entry form: Members holding shares are requested to consider converting their shares from 
physical form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares. Members can contact the Company’s share registrar for 
assistance in this regard.

Company
Name 

Folio/CDS
Account # 

Total
Shares 

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name and CNIC # Name and CNIC #Shareholding Proportion (No. of Shares) Shareholding Proportion (No. of Shares)
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PROXY FORM

The Company Secretary
Gillette Pakistan Limited
11th Floor, The Harbour Front,
Dolmen City, HC-3, Block-4,
Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue Clifton,
Karachi - 75600, Pakistan. 
Tel:   + (92 21) 3520 5088
Fax: + (92 21) 3529 6150

 Folio No.

I / We

being a Member of Gillette Pakistan Limited hereby appoint

or failing him / her

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 32nd Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held on October 25, 2019 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this          day of       2019

Signed by the said

in the presence of

Important:

1. Signatures should agree with the specimen signatures registered with the Company.

2. This form of proxy duly completed and signed across a revenue stamp, must be deposited at the Company's registered 
office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting.

Revenue Stamp
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